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EMERGENCY MOTION TO ADDRESS NON DISCLOSURE OF CONTINUOUS CONFLICTS OF INTEREST OF FAILING TO DISCLOSE MILLIONS OF PRE AND POST PETITION PREFERENTIALS AND REMOVAL ADMINISTRATOR WHO IS PARTNERS WITH THE ARRESTED CREDITORS FIRM FOR TAMPERING 
WITH CLIENTS ACCOUNTS AND PERPETRATING FRAUD ON PRO SE HAAS
I
Opening Remarks


The pursuit of justice is always served well, most times, by those entrusted with Officer of the Court duties. The system rewards such venerated with lucrative workloads and fees, well above the average trodden American citizen for demonstrating consistently that their respected positions are duly earned for their strict ethical compliance, practice and behavior in/of the Code.


Unfortunately, one in a while, there are those who slip into the system, abusing their entrusted position by seeking to devour innocent parties ad hoc; doing so by subterfuge of the most heinous kind, including deliberate acts of perpetration of fraud upon the court.


Prior to this time, the Federal System was extensively lenient to the law firms of Traub Bonacquist & Fox and Morris Nichols Arsht & Tunnel; believing in the possibility that their original confessions of failing to disclose conflicts of interest were a single aberrant act of behavior. New evidence points out old crimes that are still harming innocent parties of interest.
As will be revealed below, the parties are continuously engaged in acts of bad faith and the disease of such is profuse well beyond the level of “shocking the conscience”!

Wherefore  I, Steven Haas (a/k/a Laser Haas) (“Haas”) do aver “under penalty of perjury” the following facts below and request an Official Notify & Refer to a clearly independent
 US Attorney and the Dept of Justice United States Trustee’s office senior staff in Washington D.C. under Section 18 U.S.C. § 3057(a) as well as a communication to the United States Trustee in Washington to address the issues as is required under 28 U.S.C. § 586(a)(3)(F).

Clearly the manifest injustice is now documented to be abundant and profuse with readily apparent evidence that there remains no sufficient deterrent and ample cause for heavy anxiety!

II
Jurisdiction

The Court has jurisdiction over this Motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157 and 1334. Venue of these cases and the Motion in this district is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1408 and 1409. This is a core proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(2)(A) in that it is a matter concerning the administration of the eToys Debtors’ estates. New evidence documents that both prior and subsequent to this Court’s original considerations of multiple failures by many Officers of the Court to disclose conflicts of interest that was addressed in detail by this Court’s finding of facts and conclusions of Law Opinion and Corresponding Order of October 4, 2005 granting leniency – that the parties were acting in bad faith continuously failing to disclose conflicts!
Such reflections of affirmatively falsities by the Officers of the Court skew 11 U.S.C. 5 547(b)(4)(A) statutory requisites mandating a Notify & Refer under 18 U.S.C. § 3057!
III
Background of eToys public entity pertinent demise into bankruptcy
1.
The entity of/owning eToys.com went public in mid 1999 for a purported $8 billion in total worth. Somehow, in mid-year 2000, that net worth entirely vanished and the Law firm of Traub Bonacquist & Fox (“TBF”) became the counsel for the Unofficial Unsecured Creditors Committee (“UUCC”) in the fall of 2000. During that time TBF handled the loan transactions of Foothill Capital, and walked through the Goldman Sachs sale of BabyCenter.com to Johnson & Johnson. These transactions occurred “pre-bankruptcy-petition”.


2.
For these various reasons, a bankruptcy petition was planned for eToys in the fall of 2000, but stayed, due to purported legal timing issues. Johnson & Johnson desired to acquire the entity BabyCenter.com for a reported $10 million, (while not in the bankruptcy sphere). 
3.
At the same time Bain/ Kay Bee Toys (“KB”), and their CEO Michael Glazer, desired to acquire eToys.com with all assets and preferred not to merge with or become a public company.  (Bain/KB Toys did buy the bulk of eToys Estate assets for discounts in the millions)!
4.
In November 2000 the financial entity Foothill Capital, a subsidiary of Wells Fargo loaned eToys $40 million. Then, more than $100 million was transacted with Wells Fargo prior to March 6, 2001. Doing so during the preferential ninety (90) day review period!  

5.
On or about March 7, 2001 the public entity of eToys.com and its related/ affiliated holdings that remained - filed for Bankruptcy in Delaware (DE Bankruptcy Court In re eToys 01-706 (DE 2001)) subsequently renamed Post Confirm Plan as ebc1, Inc (“Debtor”).


6.
The TBF New York law firm (founded by Paul Traub) then became the DE Bankruptcy Court approved counsel (docket item
 (“D.I.” 246) for the “post-petition”- [now] Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors.  Frederick Rosner is the self proclaimed local counsel for TBF in Delaware. Mr. Rosner, currently with the law firm of Duane Morris of Wilmington DE has traveled to several firms carrying the Debtor’s case with him.
7.
Morris Nichols Arsht & Tunnel (“MNAT”), became the DE Bankruptcy Court (D.I. 252) approved counsel for the eToys Debtor. 

8.
Steven Haas (a/k/a Laser Haas) (“Haas”) is the 100% sole owner of Collateral Logistic’s Inc., (“CLI”). The entity CLI was the DE Bankruptcy Court approved liquidation consultant (D.I. 253 & D.I. 523). CLI engagement was to halt an off the cuff auction process that was streaming along to liquidate all the remaining assets of the Debtor for a paltry $5.4 million.

9.
Either due to the fact that the eToys founders were embarrassed by the rapid rise and fall of the public entity or the consummate desire to avoid any SEC/ FBI investigation; the founding, key, senior Executives of the Debtor made the unusual choice to abandon the estate. 
10.
As a result MNAT and TBF found themselves in total control of the Debtor’s estate, that they unfortunately, nefariously seized, as will be documented, through plot & ploy.

11.
Whether or not the scheme was contrived prior to the bankruptcy petition or after; remains to be seen. There is extensive, sufficient, evidence to suggest that all of this was pre-designed. Including a feasibility study by Bain/KB to acquire eToys assets and the issues thereof.
12.
The first sign, (within the docket), that something was largely amiss, is MNAT’s successful request for the Destruction of Books n Records (D.I. 300) (that the DE Bankr Court approved (D.I. 375). As highly unusual as it is to even dare to seek the destruction of evidence, such gall is keenly bested by the fact that the Delaware Dept of Justice did not object suitably. 


13.
There was also much banter about who the Debtor would engage as the new Chief Executive, (in charge of all bankruptcy matters). It was necessary to maintain the appearance of a client, in order to avoid a conversion to Chapter 7. 

14.
After Haas discovered that David Haddad was keeping a secret about more than $2 million in cash deposits in Europe [a crime]; only David Gatto remained.
15.
CrossRoads LLC (“Xroads”) (the Court approved financial consultant for the Debtor) (D.I. 254) offered one of their own for the key bankruptcy liquidation Executive. The US Trustee immediately rejected the notion as a violation of the Code (101(14)); as many detailed discussions transpired about “Not replacing key executives of the Debtor with anyone connected to the retained professionals of the Debtor’s estate” (see the US Trustee’s stipulations parts ¶19 and ¶35 (D.I. 2195,) (the US Trustee Motion February 15, 2005) (Haas (“Exhibit 1”)).


16.
The eToys entity was reorganized and the Plan was confirmed in late 2002 (the “Confirmed Plan”). As a result the Post Effective Date Committee (PEDC) was formed. 
17.
TBF proffered Barry Gold in the fall of 2002 as an “arms length” Confirmed Plan Administrator (“Administrator”) who could represent the Debtor separate from all parties in “good faith”. The DE Bankruptcy Court Confirmed the Plan and Barry Gold in November 2002.
18.
Haas notified the Court, the DE Dept of Justice and parties of interest of the failure of TBF, MNAT and Barry Gold who retaliated against Haas, stating erroneously that Haas is not a party of interest  that he had “waived” the $3.7 million of Fees and Expenses earned by CLI for its Court approved work. Abundant amounts of evidence was prohibited from being entered into the docket record or to addressed by the Court due to the erroneous contentions. New evidence documents that MNAT, TBF are doing a perpetration of fraud upon the court!

19.
Many hearings and pleadings resulted in confessions by MNAT and TBF to their claiming of minor infractions resulting in a disgorgement of TBF for a purported $750,000 and MNAT for an un-disclosed amount. MNAT, TBF and Barry Gold all are continuously engaging in extensively egregious major acts of failing to disclose serious conflicts of interest including, inter alia, connections to the party acquiring the bulk of the Debtor’s estate (Bain/ KB Toys) as well as the Wells Fargo issue, the arrest of Creditor’s counsel Dreier LLP for fraud and efforts to defraud Haas and CLI. It is now also learned that MNAT, Paul Traub/Dreier, Frederick Rosner and others are also engaged in the same non-disclosure issues in others case such as Domain Inc!
IV.
Prior History of Breach of Section 327(a) and Section 101(14)
20.
 In the latter part of 2004 Haas was threatened by TBF to “back off” from investigating purported connections of the Debtor’s CEO/ Confirmed Plan Administrator Barry Gold to the Court approved Creditors counsel TBF.  A threat by Susan Balaschak of TBF was emailed to Haas by the CLI attorney Henry Heiman - stating that if Haas did not “back off” - CLI and Haas would not get payment for the Court approved work; the professional career of Haas would suffer and additional retaliations would occur.

21.
CLI was engaged due to the fact that there were auctions scheduled to sell the entire Debtor’s estate for only $5.4 million. Haas and CLI successfully halted the auction and paltry return, helping to get back more than $45 million into the Debtor’s cash accounts. 
22.
Subsequent investigations by Haas, after informing the Delaware Dept of Justice of the threats – resulted in Haas being informed by the Delaware Dept of Justice of the case of In re Bonus Sales that led to irrefutable proof (DE Bankruptcy 03-12284 docket item therein 17), of an affidavit of Barry Gold, that Paul Traub and Barry Gold co-owned an entity Asset Disposition Advisors (“ADA”). The main issue of ADA is its irrefutable proof against Mr. Gold and TBF.
23
In October and November 2004 being that the CLI attorney, (Henry Heiman) – stated he agreed with Susan Balaschak of TBF, emailing Haas the threat – that Haas should “back off’; forcing Haas - as a matter of Law (18 USC § 4 MisPrision of a Felony) - to inform the DE Bankruptcy Court as a “pro se” of the statutory violations.
24.
The Federal Bankruptcy Court version of knowledge before and after the fact of a felony violate act is the MisPrision of a Felony statute 18 U.S.C. § 4 that stipulates;

“Whoever, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony cognizable by a court of the United States, conceals and does not as soon as possible make known the same to some judge or other person in civil or military authority under the United States, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than three years, or both”
25.
Haas was not alone in the quest for justice. As it turned out, the eToys shareholders were suspicious and had been trying to find proof that Barry Gold and TBF were connected.  The eToys shareholders joined and adopted the allegations and proof as well.

26.
An Emergency hearing transpired on December 22, 2004; to address the issues of “non-disclosure” of the “conflict of interest” of Barry Gold’s connections to Paul Traub of TBF.

27.
The Court Ordered responses by the parties to occur on or before January 25, 2005.  At which time the parties were most assuredly commanded to totally “come clean” on all issues of “non-disclosure” of any “conflict of interest”.
28.
Both the TBF law firm and the MNAT law firm stipulated in their original Rule 2014 Affidavits, to be hired under Section 327(a) Professional Persons, that they were Disinterested Persons per Section 101(14) – as is mandated by the Bankruptcy Code & Rules.
29.
Previously and repetitively, (almost on a monthly basis), TBF (D.I. 286, 437, 501 etc) and MNAT (D.I. 550, 612, 646, 697 etc) supplied monthly, quarterly, interim and final fee applications, proffering (by Rule 2014/ 2016 Affidavits) that MNAT & TBF had no “conflict of interest” and stating repeatedly that there were no “undisclosed” items or issues.
30.
Further investigations revealed that Barry Gold and Paul Traub, with their co-owned entity ADA, were also involved in the In re HomeLife 01-2412 DE Bankr case (2001).  The HomeLife case was running almost concurrent with the eToys case.


31.
The Sec. Of State investigations determined that ADA was a NY foreign held Corp that was filed within DE by Nancy A Valente in April 2001 (purportedly a month before Barry Gold was planted within the Debtor)!

32.
During the Emergency Hearing to address the Perjury and Fraud of December 22, 2004, the Asst US Trustee did remark that it was obvious a serious non-disclosure of a conflict of interest had transpired (Transcript of December 22, 2004 hearing (D.I. 2151 – pg 7 lines 1- 16). 

33.
The Court Ordered responses to the allegations by January 25, 2005. TBF responded as Objection (D.I. 2171); MNAT responded with an Omnibus document (D.I. 2173) and Barry Gold responded through his attorney, Mark Minuti (D.I. 2169). 

34.
TBF confessed that it failed to notify the Court of its relationship with Barry Gold and defended its actions as TBF stipulated that it was of no consequence as a single aberrant act.
35.
MNAT confessed that it had failed to notify the Court of its connections to Goldman Sachs and GECC in the depositions of February 9 2005 as the only aberrant acts.

36.
Barry Gold denied doing anything wrong and stated erroneously and egregiously that in his position of President/ CEO and Confirmed Plan Administrator he has acted in “good faith” and that Barry Gold never made any false remarks. The evidence clearly contradicts this!
37.
Barry Gold’s Exhibit A, Exhibit 1, the “terms of employment” letter (the “Hiring Letter”) signed by eToys Exec VP David Gatto  contains an illegal option to choose, by Barry Gold’s own volition, whether or not to apply to the Court [or comply with the Code] for approval of employment as an Officer of eToys. 

38.
During the hearing of February 1, 2005 the Asst US Trustee stipulated that “it has now been admitted, subject to certain explanations and characterizations by Traub, Bonacquist, and Fox, that there was a material fact – several material facts, as Your Honor has seen, that were not timely disclosed, in fact, were not admitted by Traub, Bonacquist, and Fox and Mr. Gold until very recently”. (Please see Transcript of February 1, 2005 hearing (D.I. 2191) (pg 12 lines 24 & 25, continuous to pg 13 lines 1 thru 5 inclusive). The Court granted Haas and others the right to depose TBF and Barry Gold February 9, 2005.

39.
Undoubtedly, to the chagrin of the senior partners of MNAT, their counsel Mr. Abbott actually pleaded the Court to be a party conjunctive with TBF in the depositions as well.

40.
The Asst US Trustee acknowledged to the Court during the February 1, 2005 hearing; that the Governments position would be made to the Court on February 15, 2005.

41.
The depositions (“Depositions”) transpired on February 9, 2005, at the DE Federal Court house because both Haas and the eToys shareholders had been physically threatened to “back off”. The Depositions provided additional proof of the violations.

42.
The Bankruptcy Court permitted the eToys shareholder, Robert Alber, permission to make the depositions part of the record March 1 2005 (please see Transcript (D.I. 2228).

43.  
On February 15, 2005 the Motion to Disgorge TBF for $1.6 million was submitted by the US Trustee’s office on (D.I. 2195) (the “Disgorge Motion”) (Haas Exhibit 1). 

44.
The Asst US Trustee affirmed its previous statements of December 22, 2004 and February 1, 2005, that violations had occurred and that TBF had admitted to the violations. The US Trustee Motioned to the Court on February 15, 2005 the “United States Trustee’s Motion for Entry of Order Directing Disgorgement of Fees Paid to Traub Bonacquist & Fox LLP for services rendered as Counsel to Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors” (D.I. 2195) (the “Disgorge Motion”) (Haas’s “Exhibit 1”) stating the actions by TBF were materially adverse.

45.
The US Trustee remarked within the Disgorge Motion that the parties had been forewarned (¶19 & §35), that the acts were deliberate, rather than inadvertent (¶19), that TBF breached its fiduciary duty to disclose (¶17) and concluded that Fraud on the Court had occurred (Disgorge Motion (D.I. 2195) ¶ 35)!

46.
Inexplicably the Disgorge Motion by the US Trustee office failed to address the fact that MNAT also admitted to its failure to disclose connections. Specifically to Goldman Sachs (issues in the millions upon millions of dollars) as the US Trustee was present during the MNAT Michael Busenkell Deposition of February 9, 2005 confessions. 

47.
MNAT, without informing the Court of its representation of Goldman Sachs did collaborate with Barry Gold and TBF previously to hand over the Goldman Sachs issues to TBF.
48.
The Disgorge Motion documented additional malum in se documenting within the Disgorge Motion (¶17) remarking that TBF affirmatively misrepresented the facts in the TBF Supplemental Affidavit (D.I. 838) in January 2002, where TBF petitioned and did successfully gain the Court’s permission to handle the Goldman Sachs affair.


49.
The DE Bankruptcy Court approved TBF’s working on Goldman Sachs issue (D.I. 922) while it was being deceived by both TBF and MNAT about the issue noting;
“AND this Court being satisfied that TB&F [TBF] continues to represent and hold no interest adverse to the Committee or the Debtors and that TB&F will not represent any other entity in connection with the within cases--”.



50.
It is also now confessed that Paul Traub’s firm, TBF – paid Barry Gold $30,000 per month from January 2001 that halted in May 2001. The Court deposed Paul Traub of TBF on this issue and Paul Traub detailed such (please see March 1, 2005 hearing (Transcript pages 60-69 (D.I. 2228)). Barry Gold was a de facto paid associate of the TBF law firm.
51.
Barry Gold and Paul Traub did disclose many cases to the Court, Haas and other parties of interest that they were both involved with – However – one case that was not disclosed is the Goldman Sachs controlled entity of Cosmetics Plus (SDNY Bankruptcy 01-14471). 

52.
Subsequent to the Disgorge Motion, the Delaware Dept. of Justice, less than ten (10) days after seeking to disgorge TBF for $1.6 million, proffered the US Trustee’s Stipulation to Settle the Disgorge Motion (D.I. 2201) that endeavors to grant the TBF parties improper immunity in violation of Section 327(a) as it remarks erroneously and egregiously;

“WHEREAS the United States Trustee shall not seek to compel TBF to make additional disclosures”


53.
Though the Delaware Dept of Justice may seek to abandon its fiduciary duty; such violation does not grant carte blanche to the Federal System of Justice and universal immunity to continuous felony violations. A hearing occurred on March 1, 2005 to address the evidence of the violations and at the request of TBF’s counsel, the Court did rule that Haas was not a party of interest and could no longer proffer evidence into the record. MNAT, Frederick Rosner and Barry Gold, as well, insisted that Haas is not a party of interest.

54.
Haas and his entity CLI were subsequently dismissed with prejudice under Rule 41(b), where the Court also denied the new counsel for CLI from speaking the very day the Court did expunge Haas and CLI’s $3.7 million Senior Priority administrative claims with prejudice worth an estimated $3.7 million. This retaliatory contention that is affirmatively false breaches both the Court Orders and the fiduciary duty of the parties who stated Haas failed to detail CLI’s work. The MNAT drafted Court Orders did excuse CLI from compliance with Rule 2016 stating that CLI only had to give a general description of duties per Local Rule 2016-(d).

55.
An Opinion of findings of facts and conclusions of law, with a corresponding Order did transpire on October 4, 2005; approving the Dept of Justice Stipulation to Settle.


56.
All pleadings, including, but not limited to the 3rd Circuit appeal case 07-2360; by the Delaware Dept of Justice US Trustee’s office did fail to mention anything about any of the MNAT’s false affidavits and non-disclosure of conflicts of interest.


57.
As a matter of fact the Dept of Justice, including the Acting General Counsel of the Executive Office of United States Trustee’s, in an act of imprimatur stipulated within the 3rd Circuit brief, in a footnote, that the US Trustee did not and will not address the MNAT issues.

V
New evidence documents that Haas does have standing as a “person aggrieved”

58.
There have been many efforts to spoil the investigations by the wayward parties; under pretense and “color of law”. Furtively they seek to stymie justice by ploys breaching their fiduciary duties violating 18 USC § 1346; stating that Haas does not have standing.

59.
 “Color of law - refers to an appearance of legal power to act but which may actually operate in violation of law”. The FBI is the leading agency to handle Color of Law abuses and has a web page dedicated to the issue http://www.fbi.gov/hq/cid/civilrights/color.htm. 


60.
The Delaware Bankruptcy Court, in two separate Orders (D.I. 253 & 523), approved the contracts for CLI. Both contracts were drafted by MNAT and TBF who have capitulated to the fact that they deceived the Court by false affidavits.

61.
TBF, MNAT and Barry Gold, as well as the Chairman of the Creditors coerced Haas, the 100% sole owner of CLI, to not to seek independent counsel. The fact that Haas was coerced from having independent counsel is corroborated by the Chairman’s Affidavit (Haas “Exhibit 2”). The parties have abused this good faith consideration of Haas and CLI.
62.
TBF, MNAT and Barry Gold assuaged Haas from being hired as a Professional Person and insisted that he use his company. This was done under the pretense that such efforts would save the Debtor monies and time; as everyone was swamped with duties. Haas would not have to fly back and forth to Delaware if MNAT supplied the CLI paperwork to the Court.


63.
The Court approved the stipulation that the MNAT firm could send CLI’s paperwork into the Court for processing of the expenses and fees to be paid to Haas and CLI. This is corroborated by the DE Bankruptcy Court approved contracts of CLI and the two Orders by the DE Bankruptcy Court concerning same. As verbatim “assistance of Debtor’s counsel” (please see ¶6 Court Order signed July 9, 2001 (D.I. 523) (original NIBS Docket Entry 448).


64.
 What is most arguably subterfuge is the only paperwork proffered by MNAT to the Court, outside of the original CLI contracts is the fraudulent supplication to the Court that the Haas Affidavit (D.I. 816) (Haas “Exhibit 3”) was a Waiver of $3.7 million in fees and expenses. 


65.
It is rather bizarre that the parties can stipulate that Haas does not have standing, yet, the foundation for that conclusion is that HAAS merely supplied the Court freely with an affidavit “waiving” the $3.7 million in fees and expenses. A contradiction of provisos to say the least!
The parties refused to send Haas a copy of the contracts; but Haas now has one now!

66.
The parties continue in their malfeasance against Haas successfully petitioning the Court to refuse to address the matters of Haas because his is a party without “standing” as a person aggrieved to be heard on the issue of fraud and perjury. 

67.
Without skipping a beat, the Delaware Dept of Justice adopted this premise as its own. Refusing to permit the proof of Perjury & Fraud to be entered into the record and even overtly endeavored to strike and expunge such, including the Chairman of the Creditor’s Committee Affidavits. This is akin to stating that a bank teller does not have the right to testify before the court that “X” person robbed the bank because the teller is not “the” bank. 


68.
The issue of the ability for Haas to have standing does not stop there. There is also the Code Section 503(b) Substantial Contribution.  The crux of 503(b) is to award parties the cost of their efforts for bringing returns (substantial contribution) to a bankrupt estate that otherwise might not have occurred, due to inadvertency, neglect or fraud.

69.
Even if you throw out Haas’s and CLI’s claims, at the barest of minimums, Haas, (or a janitor, the snowman or anyone in China) has the right to be “heard” on the issue of substantial contribution by Code 503(b). Including, but not limited to, if nothing else, the fact that the Stipulation to Settle proffered by the US Trustee and signed by the TBF law firm agreed to give back to the Debtor $750,000 as a direct result of Haas’s finding the evidence.

70.
Haas has contended all along that the “waiver” was fraudulent and bogus noting that neither Haas, nor CLI were ever served with the documents in question. 

71.
Even the document itself, contradicts the premise as the item offered by MNAT as the Haas Affidavit is entitled “Affidavit of Steven Haas in Support of Collateral Logistics Request for payment of Expenses”.

72.
Also the Haas Affidavit states in part 11 thereof - that the one thing that CLI may seek to recover is success fees. The Court denied the new counsel Haas had procured for CLI from speaking the very day the Court was expunging the $3.7 million CLI claims (see Transcript of August 22, 2005 hearing (D.I.2322). 

73.
The denial of due process was followed up with a document by Court that stated errantly “A to X” reasons why the CLI claim was expunged for the failure of CLI to pursue the claim (Please see Order (D.I. 2312). The Order stated CLI provided “bare bones” paperwork. 
74.
The Court Orders approving the CLI contracts - drafted by TBF, Barry Gold and MNAT; specifically states that CLI is excused from detailing its work. It is now known that the Court Orders for CLI, specifically Docket Item 253 and 523 stipulates with particularity;
“CLI is excused from the requirements of Rule 2016-29(d) of the Local Rules of Practice and Procedures for the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the “Local Rules”), except as to the portion of Local Rule 2016-2(d) that requires CLI to indentify the general project categories in which provided services”.
75.
Every time that Haas requested to review the Books n Records to document the exact amounts due CLI - TBF, Barry Gold and MNAT simply refused to discuss the matter.

76.
The Court totally overlooked the issue that MNAT was the party to supply the CLI paperwork to the Court. It is improper for the Court to grant MNAT the unjust enrichment of seeking to strike and expunge CLI and Haas due to MNAT’s own failures to perform the Court Ordered duty. Especially when MNAT also seeks to strike and expunge proof from the Court docket record by Haas that MNAT has engaged in bad faith acts.

77.
Within the contracts are provisions and obligations of the Debtor to CLI and CLI parties. Specifically the Indemnification clauses of the Delaware Bankruptcy Court approved contracts (D.I. 253 & 523) stating that the Debtor must indemnify and hold harmless CLI and its affiliates and the officers, directors agents and employees of such harmless from and against any and all claims; including willful misconduct and/or gross negligence of the Debtor. As is documented verbatim by the following guarantee of standing of Haas before the Court;


CLI Contract 1 – MAINTANCE And LIQUIDATION SERVICES


Part 6 Indemnification. “eToys shall defend, indemnify and hold CLI and its affiliates and the officers, directors, agents and employees of such, harmless from and against any and all claims, suits, damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, fines, penalties, costs and expenses (whether based on tort, breach of contract, product liability, patent or copyright infringement or otherwise), including reasonable legal fees and expenses, of whatever kind or nature, arising out of or based on any loss of the Collateral other than any such loss arising out of CLI’s negligence or intentional misconduct”.


78.
Then, in the 2nd CLI Contract the  AMENDMENT to COLLATERAL MAINTAINCE that was negotiated by Barry Gold as well as TBF and MNAT. It remarks;


Part 10  Indemnification.  “In regard to performance under this Amendment Agreement, each party shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party, and the other party’s directors, officers employees and agents, from and against any and all claims, suits, damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, fines, penalties, judgments, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements arising out of or relating to; (i) the death or personal injury of any person resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of itself, its employees, agents or contractors (or their employees, agents or contractors); (ii) the loss of or damage to any property resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of itself. Its employees, agents or contractors (or their employees, agents or contractors); or (iii) the material breach of this Amendment Agreement by such parties or its employees, agents or contractors (or their employees agents or contractors)”.


79.
Clearly anyone can plainly see, by this evidence that the Contracts, drafted by Barry Gold, TBF and MNAT – being approved by the Court; provides that the Debtor is to defend, indemnify and hold harmless CLI and its agents, directors, officers, employees (“Haas” being one of) from all material breaches, of whatever kind or nature, of the Debtor, including, the willful misconduct of the Debtor, its employees, agents or contractor (or their employees agents or contractors). It also states under Section 6 Additional Obligations of Parties, 


4(b)(i)
-- “Except as provided in Section 4(a)(i), the Debtors shall be obligated to provide all staff, employee(s) and/or other personal (and/or to pay the expenses of such persons provided by CLI or others at the Debtors’ request) that may be required (as agreed among the Debtors, the Committee and CLI) to manage, move, provide security and sell the Remaining Collateral. The expenses, including but not limited to payroll and benefits, for providing these employees shall be paid by the Debtors”.


80.
Therefore the contentions by Barry Gold, TBF and MNAT, that Haas, the President, CEO and authorized agent for CLI, lacks the standing to be heard is phony. Any approved employee of CLI is to be directly paid by the Debtor as Ordered by this Court.

81.
It is now known that TBF, Barry Gold and MNAT failed to disclose connections to Bain/KB. Every instance that Haas was able to force a higher bid by other parties to occur; it frustrated their client Bain/KB. An alarming issue that documents this conclusively is that Haas had KB originally bid $10 million for the eToys.com asset. Deceptively MNAT, TBF and Barry Gold reduced the $10 million to a mere $3 million (with no proof of payment).


82.
Arguably, the parties were motivated to benefit their undisclosed, connected client KB. It simply boggles the mind and shocks the conscience that this skullduggery has been permitted profuse latitude and has severally degenerated the public’s faith in the integrity of the judicial process. It simply cannot be that those that would deliberately perpetrate fraud on the Court can be given the latitude to destroy the whistle blower as a retaliatory unjust enrichment!

V
Details of acts of Perjury by Barry Gold
83.
Much ado and banter has ensued, proffering what Haas contends is a false logic tree, that Barry Gold is not guilty of any wrong doing. Many ascertains of the notion that Barry Gold did not have to apply per Section 327(a) as a mere executive officer of the Debtor. Even if, arguendo, you grant everyone the latitude of such an conceptual notion; the fact remains that Barry Gold has committed Perjury to receive the post of Confirmed Plan Administrator.

84.
The fact remains Barry Gold was questioned, on the stand, about his connections to Paul Traub and TBF by the eToys shareholder Robert Alber – who expressed deep concerns that the parties not receive a “Get out of jail free card”  – and the evidence now shows that Barry Gold dodged being candid and was evasive on the issue while TBF and MNAT both sat in silence knowing the facts of Barry Gold and Paul Traub’s connections (please see Transcripts of the October and November 2002 hearings where the eToys shareholder Robert Alber questioned Barry Gold prior to the plan being confirmed in 2002 (Transcript of Nov. 1, 2002 hearing (D.I. 2152), transcript of Nov. 18, 2002 (D.I. 2153) and transcript of October 16, 2002 hearing (D.I. 1394)).

85.
Barry Gold had backed himself into a corner. Mr. Gold had no choice to go on the stand in the Pre Plan confirmation hearings and continued the falsehood premise that he supplicated in the Administrators Declarations. Otherwise he would be admitting that he had perjured himself by his oath under penalty of perjury within his Agreement and Declaration.

86.
 Barry Gold, states deceptively in the 2002 Confirmed Plan Agreement Declaration part (c)20 that “The Creditors’ Committee has designated me to Serve as the Plan Administrator” as it continues to state in a duplicitous way “The Debtors have consented to that designation”. Barry Gold was the only Debtor Chief Executive and CEO and TBF, Barry Gold’s undisclosed connection was the Creditor’s approving party; this is Fraud upon the Court! 
87.
The Affidavit of the former Chairman of the Creditors Committee, who Paul Traub was representing, stipulates that he was deceived by the Barry Gold and Paul Traub in the  engagement of Barry Gold and that he is dismayed at the apparent lack of desire to rectify the subterfuge (please see Haas Exhibit 2 Chairman’s Affidavit ¶17).

88.
But the subterfuge does not halt there either. Barry Gold is the President and CEO of a public company and has a fiduciary duty to those he is employed of [shareholders & the creditors] Section 7. Selection Of Officers And Directors Section 1123(a)(7) Mr. Gold states;


“I understand that section 1123(a)(7) of the Bankruptcy Code requires that the Plan’s provisions with respect to the manner of selection of any director, officer or trustee, or any successor thereto, be “consistent with the interests of creditors and equity security holders and with public policy -- The Plan satisfies this requirement”. 


89.
Barry Gold continues the pretense within the Agreements & Declaration, as he states it is done “under penalty of perjury”. Stipulating as Part C Plan Proposed In Good Faith Section 1129(a)(3) - Mr. Gold remarks in sub part 43;


“I understand that only a Plan that has been proposed in good faith and not by any means forbidden by law may be confirmed. I understand that a Plan is filed in good faith if it has a legitimate and honest purpose and presents a reasonable hope of success”


90.
As the TBF offered its secret partner as Plan Administrator - in Part C sub part 44 the boldest deceptive contention that Mr. Gold could proffer states;

“44.-- The Plan represents extensive arms’ length negotiations among the Debtors’ the Creditors’ Committee, and other significant parties in interest, as well as their advisors.  The Debtors proposed the Plan in good faith in order to achieve the greatest distribution for their unsecured creditors, and to avoid delay and unnecessary cost in making such distributions. The Plan was proposed in good faith in so far as it is the logical and best method for administering the consideration received by the debtors from their sale of substantially all their assets”


91.
While the Code does stipulate in Rule 1144 that a Confirmed Plan cannot be changed, even for Fraud, after 180 days. The Plan does however, contain a provision for the removal of the Plan Administrator for “Cause” defined as willful misconduct or gross negligence (arguably both have transpired here in great degrees) (Please see Section 5.2).


92.
Applicable to the issue to remove Barry Gold as Plan Administrator for cause is extensive violations of the Administrator Agreement Section 3.12 Transactions with Related Persons;


Section 3.12 – “Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Agreement, the Plan Administrator shall not knowingly, directly or indirectly, sell or otherwise Transfer all or any part of the assets of the Estate(s’) to, or contract with, (a) any relative, employee or agent (acting in their individual capacities) of the Plan Administrator or (b) any Person of which any employee or agent of the Plan is an affiliate by reason of being a trustee, director, officer, partner or direct or indirect beneficial owner of five percent (5%) or more--”

93.
Clearly Barry Gold violated this provision being a direct partner with Paul Traub. The US Trustee acknowledged that TBF had been paid more than $3.5 million in fees and expenses in the Disgorge Motion. The amount sought to be disgorged pre-plan was only $1.6 million, due to the fact that the other $1.9 million transpired after the Plan was Confirmed.


94.
Obviously the “finding of fact” and “conclusion of law” by the Delaware Bankruptcy Court in the Opinion of October 4, 2005, that no Perjury acts by Barry Gold had been documented - is clear error and must be rectified; especially given the current state of affairs of the arrest and crimes of the Dreier LLP law firm whom TBF did merge with.

95.
Of serious cause for concern is the Confirmed Plan has a stipulation that the Administrator is permitted to settle all issues under $1 million without the Court’s approval
 (Plan Administrator agreement Section 4.3(d)(i) supplied by the DE Delaware Bankruptcy Court as Order Exhibit A part 2 (D.I.1385 Courts Exhibit A part 2). The only approval needed was that of the PEDC (Paul Traub or Traub/Dreier’s local counsel Frederick Rosner).
96.
The stipulation that the Plan Administrator Barry Gold shall have no accountability for reasonableness to any one for any settlement. in the Administrator Agreement Section 4.3(d)(i) states conditions that benefit the scheming parties profusely and abhorrently;

 “if the proposed amount at which the Disputed Claim is to be allowed is less than or equal to $1,000,000, then the Plan Administrator shall be authorized and empowered to settle the Disputed Claim and execute necessary documents, including a stipulation of settlement or release upon the Plan Administrator’s receipt of the PEDC’s consent to” 

97.
The NY Supreme Ct case, on breach of duty that the court has approved to go forward; where Goldman Sachs is sued for the initial public offering of eToys going as high as $78 dollars, while eToys, again in harms way only received up to $16.50 and Goldman Sachs purportedly benefited in the remaining wealth spread elsewhere (NY Sup Ct case number 601805/2002). MNAT, TBF and Barry Gold are partners in a scheme to defraud shareholders!
98.
The risk for Goldman Sachs is est. between $300 and $500 million. Barry Gold could settle this for less than $999,000 and have Barry Gold’s partner Paul Traub approve! 
99.
Given the documentation of crushing conflicts of interest and the constant self serving efforts of TBF, MNAT and Barry Gold that breaches fiduciary duties to their respective clients on matters that continuously plagues this court a swift, hard hammer of justice is needed!
VI
Details of False Affidavits by the TBF Law Firm 

100.
It is a fact the parties have provided more than thirty-four (34) false affidavits!
101.
The United States Attorney Manual (“USAM”) stipulates under Section 1748 _ Elements of Perjury are as this “The false statement must be material to the proceedings. A false statement is material if it has "a natural tendency to influence, or is capable of influencing, the decision of the decision-making body to which it was addressed." Kungys v. United States, 485 U.S. 759, 770 (1988)”, eToys docket item 2195 by the Dept of Justice in eToys states so here.
102.
 Recently, in dealing with a Trustee in a bankruptcy case who tried to obfuscate the issue of whether or not false testimony was violate, the 11th Circuit stipulated that  - Lying under Oath is fraud as recently stated by Her Honor Kravitch In re James Walker (11th Circuit 06-11743) - “lying under oath is Lying Under Oath”! Emphasis cannot be added enough here.
. 103.
During the Pre-Plan Confirmation hearings, Barry Gold was directly questioned by an eToys shareholder about his connections to Paul Traub of TBF. Barry Gold denied being connected to TBF, who sat in complete silence (knowing the testimony to be false). (Please see Transcript of October 16, 2002 hearing (D.I. 1394)). The TBF parties in the room remained silent perpetrating fraud on the court while planting Barry Gold within the Debtor (again).

104
Both Barry Gold and Paul Traub had ongoing conflict of interest issues with Goldman Sachs throughout the tenure of this case as well. Where TBF and Barry Gold worked for the Goldman Sachs controlled entity of In re Cosmetics Plus that was a S.D.N.Y. bankruptcy case (SDNY Bankr # 01-14471). There is still no disclosure on this issue.

105.
TBF acquired its position to handle the Goldman Sachs case under false pretense, through the Supplemental False Affidavit as was noted as affirmatively false affidavit in the Disgorge Motion ¶ 17; remarking that TBF compounded its previous Rule 2014 violations by “affirmatively misrepresenting” the facts (Disgorge Motion (D.I. 2195) (Haas Exhibit 1 ¶17).

106.
Also in the TBF Objection (D.I. 2171 ¶38) - TBF considered amending their disclosure statements and consciously decided not to (please see Disgorge Motion ¶18).

107.
The party that nominated and “permitted” TBF to handle the Goldman Sachs issues was MNAT; this is akin to Al Capone offering to being tried by his cohort Frank Nitti.

108
The attorney for Goldman Sachs was going after TBF for false testimony in the NY Supreme Court case of Goldman Sachs (NY Supreme Ct 601805/2002). Now the Sachs attorney has vanished from the case and nearly half the entire NY Supreme Court docket of ebc1 [eToys] v Sachs 601805/2002 is Under Seal! A pure Administrator is needed to remedy this.
109.
New evidence that TBF merged with Dreier LLP  (TBF/Dreier) and the senior partner of Marc Dreier being arrested for tampering with clients accounts is greatly alarming.


110.
Paul Traub of TBF was also partner with Tom Petters in Ubid, Petters Group Worldwide (“PGW”) and Fingerhut; and Tom Petters is also found to be guilty of fraudulent endeavors and seizing money from every account he could. Traub, Petters/Fingerhut is an eToys anxiety issue as the Debtor had litigation issues with Fingerhut that TBF and Barry Gold did settle only to see Paul Traub become a partner in Fingerhut! This needs investigation as well.

111.
It is an established principal within the Circuits that once a person has been found to proffer false testimony; all subsequent testimony is to be extensively suspected. Under the US Supreme Court decision in Giglio (Giglio v United States 405 U.S 150, 154-55 92 S. Ct. 763, 766 31 L.Ed.2d 104 (1972)) – once a party is found unfaithful by false declarations, all other testimony is not worth a grain of salt. TBF and any of his related parties cannot testify against CLI, Haas based upon the premise of TBF’s ethical character – such being overwhelmingly documented to be suspect for repetitive, intentional deceptiveness of the Court itself!
VII
MNAT’s continuous acts of non-disclosure on serious conflicts of interest
112.
MNAT breaches it’s duties in its response by defending the positions of Barry Gold; in a manner that would appear to make MNAT the de facto counsel of the Confirmed Plan Administrator Barry Gold; remarking that Mr. Gold was an employee or Ordinary Course Professional (“OCP”). As is stated on the US Trustee website In re Kraft v Aetna Casualty & Security Co., 43 B.R. 119 (Bankr. M.D. Tenn. 1984) (“appraiser cannot bypass 327(a) by stating mere mechanical services”) (seen on the USTM of issues of Professional Persons).

113.
There are also established precedents, adopted and affirmed, within the Delaware Bankruptcy Court itself on this issue that the person who has any autonomy or authority over bankruptcy decisions has stepped beyond the boundaries of OCP and must apply by Section 327(a). In re: First Merchants Acceptance Corp., No. 97-1500(JJF), 1997 WL 873551, at*2 and at*3 (DE Dec. 15, 1997) establishing the “quantitative” and “qualitative” standards for who is defined as a professional). As is also established in the case In re: Stahl v Bartley Lindsay 137 B.R. 305, 309 (D. Minn. 1991) “Courts have concluded that financial advisors must be retained under 11 USC § 327(a)” – it is also morose to allow TBF and Barry Gold scheming success!
114.
MNAT continues its breach of fiduciary duty by defending TBF in the MNAT Response of January 25, 2005, stating that TBF should not be disqualified from the PEDC. 

115.
It remains conclusive that it is now admitted that MNAT did not disclose its relationship of its concurrent representation of Goldman Sachs in other cases while being engaged for the Debtor. (Please see MNAT deposition of Michael Busenkell February 9, 2005).

116.
Adjudicating the issue of MNAT without the additional items, the Delaware Bankruptcy Court stated in its Opinion of October 4, 2005 that the actions by MNAT were deliberate and materially adverse and that MNAT failed to file a candid Supplemental Disclosure (Please see the “Opinion” (D.I. 2319) Part B MNAT and Partners pages 16 to 32 (inclusive)).

117.
Of particular note the Opinion stipulates that Haas is not a party, there is new evidence to the contrary of this item. At the same time the Court states on page 29 of the Opinion under Part B subsection v. Remedy that “disqualification of MNAT as counsel to the Debtor is not practical”. The Code is “unambiguous’ upon such matters (In re Middleton Arm’s 934 F.2d 723 (6th Cir 1991) “courts cannot use equitable [any] principals to circumvent the clear and “unambiguous” language of Section 327(a)”. MNAT continues to perpetrate material harm!
118.
Extensive amounts of time and cases within the 3rd Circuit and the Delaware Courts has established and affirmed the principal that failure to disclose must result in disqualification. In re BH&P, Inc., 949 F.2d 1300 (3rd Cir. 1991) - In re Marvel Entertainment Group, Inc., 140 F.3d 463 (3rd Cir1998) – the Courts’ abundant references of Rome v Braunstein 19 F.3d 54, 58 (1st Cir 1994)(noting that conflicts can be “patently inappropriate”) – US Trustee v Price Waterhouse 19 F.3d (3rd Cir 1994) (the Price Waterhouse case was cited by both the Bankruptcy Court & the US Trustee and even the 3rd Cir concerning the eToys saga) - In re Price Waterhouse v US Trustee (93-3337) 19 F.3d 138 62 USLW 2638, 25 Bankr.Ct.Dec. 618, Bankr. L. Rep. P 75, 763 (3rd Cir 1994) “non-disclosure of conflicts of interest must result in disqualification as the statute is unambiguous”. Also cited by In re First Jersey Securities 180 F 3d 504 (3rd Cir 1999)).

119.
A problem exists in referring the matter for prosecution as neither MNAT, nor the Dept of Justice informed Haas, this Court or parties of interest that the US Attorney in Wilmington DE was a partner with MNAT in 2001; the very year the violations of Perjury and Fraud occurred. You can see the resume (http://www.usdoj.gov/olp/colmconnollyresume.htm) of the US Attorney at the Dept of Justice website documenting this fact. Therefore a notice to the Public Integrity Section is needed for recusal of anyone from the DE Dept of Justice.

120.
Of an issue just as heinous as any act of nolle prosequi of connected parties is the evidence that MNAT did strike and expunge from the record concerning a serious issue of non-disclosure, having believed it was no longer consequential, MNAT is now openly representing Bain in the $100 million dollar cash preferential in the KB Toys bankruptcy case. 


121.
This is not just a recent occurrence, as MNAT might try to proffer. Bain affiliated parties were also involved in the Learning Co merger with Mattel. It is a fact that MNAT failed to point this out candidly in its original Section 327(a) Application. For the disclosure of connections to Bain, their related parties or the merging with Mattel of the Learning Co, being handled by MNAT would have resulted in the immediate disqualification of MNAT entirely.

122.
Summing up the MNAT violations, prior to the plan confirmation the firm did place over fifteen (15) interim etc. fee applications with the accompanied Affidavits. All of which are already admitted to be false concerning Goldman Sachs and GECC. The additional egregiousness of Bain, Mattel etc., only serves to further compound those violations.


123.
At the same time MNAT was approved by the Bankruptcy Court to handle the submittal of CLI’s paperwork to the Court as a cost saving measure to the Debtor. TBF, MNAT, Barry Gold and even the Creditor’s Committee discouraged Haas from having independent counsel appointed for CLI (please see corroborative evidence Chairman’s Affidavit Exhibit 2). 

124.
The only paperwork submitted by MNAT was the initial contracts for approval and the Haas Affidavit (“Haas Affidavit” (“Exhibit 3”) (D.I. 816) November 2001). Egregiously and erroneously MNAT, proffered to the Court that the Haas Affidavit was a “waiver” of all fees and expenses. Therefore MNAT is gaining unjust enrichment for MNAT’s manifest bad faith!

125.
It cannot be permitted that MNAT maintains control over anything related to the Goldman Sachs issues. The handing over of the case of eToys v Goldman Sachs is not MNAT’s to give. Even the current counsels there of Pomerantz and Wachtell, who are co-counsels with Dreier/TBF, have much explaining to do. They have not only been constantly informed by Haas of the issues and now ½ of the NY case docket is Under Seal, this is great cause for concern.

126.
Noteworthy is the issue that the counsel for Goldman Sachs has pointed out in the docket records a billing item showing that Wachtell handled the Barry Gold Directors & Officers (D&O) insurance negotiations. 


127.
Demonstrating MNAT’s extensive bad faith intent is the readily apparent egregious acts of MNAT during the recent status conference hearing. MNAT still has not informed the Court about Bain, Mattel, Dreier or Wells Fargo. Even though Haas gave the parties a chance to present the evidence to the Court 1st; the very fact that MNAT rushed to dismiss the issues, by offering facts not in evidence in a bogus manner to the court is appalling!

128.
There is also the new evidence that this virus of this groups non-disclosure is spreading, as can be noted in the Delaware Bankruptcy case of Domain Inc (explained below).

VIII
Current issues of Non Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest unaddressed by the Court

129.
Many serious issues of “non-disclosure” of “conflicts of interest” are continuously transpiring. TBF/Dreier, Frederick Rosner/Duane Morris and Barry Gold both have ongoing relationships with Wells Fargo/Foothill Capital. This is germane as Foothill gave a $40 million dollar loan to the Debtor and the loan instructions were that Wells Fargo was to receive the payments. The loan was paid off, transacting more than $100 million, prior to the filing of the eToys Debtor’s bankruptcy case. This made the loan issue a preferential treatment requiring an independent review. This is a preferential issue within a ninety (90) day period needing review!

130.
It was also discovered that the party forming the entity Asset Disposition Advisors (“ADA”), the company owned by Paul Traub and Barry Gold that was formed in April 2001 had a registered agent of Nancy A Valente. Since that time it has been learned that Nancy A Valente is working for Johnson & Johnson who acquired a $10 million asset of the Debtor.

131.
Speciously, right after Barry Gold was planted within the Debtor, the entity Liquidity Solutions began to acquire many of the Claims of the eToys Creditors. Germane is the fact that Haas has now discovered that Liquidity Solutions was Co-Debtor with Specialty Retailers, also known as Stage Stores Bankruptcy case (S TX Bankr 00-35078 (2000). 

132.
Both Barry Gold and TBF worked for Stage Stores prior and during the eToys saga. Being that the eToys Confirmed Plan Administrator is Barry Gold. Any and all claims that were acquired by Liquidity Solutions or any other party directly or indirectly connected to MNAT, TBF or Barry Gold is a crime of Collusion to Defraud the Estate and is a rescindable transaction for failure to disclose or pass the bona fide requisite.


133.
Paul Traub was also “caught” within Stage Stores by parties for failing to disclose his connections to Barry Gold. TBF had to supply a Supplemental Affidavit and disclosure notice to the Court in Stage Stores. The Supplemental in Stage Stores led Haas and the eToys shareholders to confirm other cases that were not disclosed. Being less than totally candid Paul Traub remarks on several cases, prior to Stage Stores that Barry Gold was a restructuring officer in the previous cases and Paul Traub stated several times the very coy germane remark that;


“Upon information and belief, Mr. Gold played no role in the creditors’ committee’s selection and engagement of TB&F as its counsel”

134.
Relevant is the fact that this was prior to the eToys case and more importantly, Barry Gold had testified to the eToys shareholder during the Pre Confirmation hearings that he was not at Luria Brother’s while TBF was there. However, Barry Gold had no idea at the time, that Haas would find the Supplemental document of TBF in Stage Stores that would directly refute that testimony (Stage Stores Docket item 206 TBF Supplemental Affidavit).


135.
Detailing proof of connections, Stage Stores was owned and controlled at the time by many parties directly connected to Bain/ KB Toys. Including Jack Bush of Bain’s IdeaForest, who was a director at Stage Stores. Barry Gold had testified during his February 9, 2005 Deposition that Jack Bush gets him employment opportunities often. More important than Jack Bush and the Learning Co, is the issue of Michael Glazer who was a director and stock holder at Stage Stores also. Michael Glazer was the CEO of KB Toys at the time. This is still Undisclosed!

136.
 MNAT is defending KB, while another firm is defending Michael Glazer; where Michael Glazer did cause $100 million in cash to be paid to himself and Bain – prior to KB Toys filing for bankruptcy (KB Toys 1st Bankruptcy case 04-10120).


137.
TBF asked to be the one to prosecute this $100 million preferential and the DE Dept of Justice successfully petitioned the Court to Strike and Expunge the Haas pleadings along with the Affidavit of the Chairman of the Creditors Committee (please see Kay Bee Toys Bankruptcy case docket item 2228). 


138.
The Wells Fargo/ Foothill Capital issue of TBF, Barry Gold and Xroads LLC undisclosed connections is a serious issue as is documented by the prior case of In re Bucyrus 94-20786 (E.D. Wisc (1994). In the Bucyrus case the attorney Gellene was incarcerated for his Perjury of false affidavits in not disclosing the connection to a $35 million pre-petition loan. The firm of Gellene, - Milbank & Tweed had to disgorge their entire $1.9 million and later suffered the hard side of a lawsuit losing over $20 million. You can read much of the story online of the book by esteemed Law Professor Regan entitled “Eat What you Kill” The fall of a Wall Street Lawyer; (Milton C Regan
 here ).


139.
 TBF also dismissed benefits by failing to inform the eToys Creditors and Haas of the loans to Playco were by Wells Fargo and Paragon. TBF also failed to inform Haas that Paragon was owned by Wells Fargo and Ozer Group. Or that Ozer Group was the bidder for the Playco entity at 30%. Paul Traub, TBF and Barry Gold were connected to all of those parties.


140.
Even some of the Bond Holders were drawn into the affair. Haas reported the issues to RR Donnelley, who had Mr. Durant as its key person. Mr. Durant suddenly vacated his office after it was discovered that Larry Durant had worked with Barry Gold and TBF on a case in Florida together. Goldman Sachs had two members upon the Board of RR Donnelley. 

141.
One of the other major bondholders was Fir Tree Value Fund. Its key person was Scott Henkin. When Haas tried to discuss the matters with Mr. Henkin, he was informed that Fir Tree Value Fund had given its “off the record” permission to the conflict of Barry Gold & TBF.

142.
Bain/ KB sold eToys to D E Shaw, where it is most certainly alarming that eToys.com, the company Bain and everyone else stymied Haas from keeping as a public entity is now listed on the NASDQ stock exchange under the symbol KIDS. As if all this were not enough to shock the conscience, it is now learned that Scott Henkin is one of the senior Executives at D E Shaw that currently owns eToys.com who is tinkering on Bankruptcy.

143.
Anyone can see the vast amounts of violations here as is defined within the United States Trustee Manual (“USTM”) or the US Trustee Handbook & Guidelines at the Dept of Justice US Trustee’s website
 that gives case histories and Trustee duties in detail. 
IX
Arguments for the Court to take action to address Fraud on the Court
144.
The US Trustee is the “police” of the bankruptcy system and is commanded by 28 U.S.C. § 586(a)(3)(F) and 18 U.S.C. § 3057(a) to Notify & Refer all matters of possible felony violations to the US Attorney’s office. There are many debatable arguments as to why the conspirators remain in charge of the very vault they are fleecing due to the failure of the police to properly investigate and prosecute the already confessed violations of the Code.

145.
Amazingly within the Dept of Justice websites are extensive details relevant to Barry Gold and Section 327(a), 101(14) and Rule 2014 –the US Trustee Manual Volume 3 clearly shows the DE Dept of Justice should know better. It states verbatim in Section 3-6.1.3;

“The classic definition of professional person for purposes of 11 U.S.C. § 327(a) limits the term to "persons in those occupations which play a central role in the administration of the debtor proceeding." In re Marion Carefree Ltd. Partnership, 171 B.R 584 (Bankr. N.D. Ohio 1994); In re Seatrain Lines, Inc., 13 B.R. 980, 981 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1981). The degree of autonomy and discretion exercised by the firm or individual in question is also a relevant consideration in determining whether the requirements of 11 U.S.C. § 327(a) apply. In re Bicoastal Corp., 149 B.R. 216 (Bankr. M.D. Fla. 1993); In re Park Ave. Partners Ltd. Partnership, 95 B.R. 605 (Bankr. E.D. Wis. 1988)”.

146.
Additional instructions of the United States Trustee can also be found as part of Section 3-2-8-1.2.1 Classification as a Professional;

“There may be an issue as to whether or not the person to be employed is a professional and thus subject to the employment and compensation requirements of the Bankruptcy Code. See USTM 3-6.1.3. If the person to be employed will be actively involved in case administration, the United States Trustee should assert that they are professionals. See, e.g., In re Bartley Lindsay Co., 120 B.R. 507 (Bankr. D. Minn. 1990), aff'd, 137 B.R. 305 (D. Minn. 1991) (management compensation and required to disgorge amounts paid); In re WFDR, Inc., 22 B.R. 266 (Bankr. N.D. Ga. 1982) (management consultant denied compensation when employment not approved). 
147.
Section 3-2-8.1.2.1 continues to articulate the issue of who must apply directly 

 “Other decisions regarding classification as a professional include United States Kraft v. Aetna Casualty and Sur. Co., 43 B.R. 119 (M.D. Tenn. 1984)(appraiser); In re Neidig Corp., 117 B.R. 625 (Bankr. D. Colo. 1990) (operator of radio station was a professional person -- the operator provided specialized services and acted with relatively unfettered autonomy and discretion); and In re Providence Television Ltd. Partnership, 113 B.R. 446 (Bankr. N.D. Ill. 1990) (media broker). 
148.
Whether or not a Professional Person has to apply per Section 327(a) is solely based upon the autonomy and authority of bankruptcy matters. The United States Trustee Manual (“USTM”) Vol. 3 provides instructions for the US Trustee citing the following directly “on-point” cases; In re Martin 817 F 2d 175 180 (1st Cir 1987) addressing both the “unclean hands” doctrine and listing the 12 factors to consider in application of who must apply and disclose by § 327(a).  See also In re Seatrain Lines, Inc., 13 B.R. 980, 981 (S.D.N.Y. 1981) and In re Fretheim, 102 B.R. 298, 299 (D. Conn. 1989). In re Twinton Properties 27 B.R. 817 Bankr. (CCH) 69096 (MD. Tenn. 1983) listing the 9 elements to be clear and convincing of no conflict.
149.
As is remarked so well by the Latin phrase iura novat curia, the Court knows the Law. Apart from what the reasons were for the leniency of the past, the time for such is now at an end. The mere fact that Paul Traub is connected to both Tom Petters and Marc Dreier as a partner is enough cause for concern. The additional evidence that Paul Traub planted Barry Gold, that they both supplied false affidavits, as did MNAT; compounded by the new evidence of the Wells Fargo, Foothill, Playco, Learning Co, Mattel, Goldman Sachs, Fleet Bank and Bain/KB non disclosures certainly warrants a swift, adamant, hard hammer of justice!

150
The 3rd Circuit had stated in the Precedential Opinion of In re United Artists (3rd Cir 01-3533) that one should not need to document a “shock the conscience” level of offenses as referenced by In re United Artists comments upon the Precedential case by the US Supreme Court of Sacramento v Lewis 523 U.S. 833, 846 (1998).  The case of In re United Artists defines conscious-shocking level as the “Conduct intended to injure in some way [unjustifiable] by any government interest is most likely to rise to a conscience-shocking level”. 
151.
The 3rd Circuit noted the US Supreme Court remarks concerning “improper motive” of government personnel See United Artists, 2003 U.S. App. LEXIS 515 at *18-19 (collecting cases); id. At (35-38) (same) see also Sacramento U.S. at 849 (“Historically, this guarantee of due process has applied to deliberate decisions of government officials to deprive a person of life, liberty or property.” (Quoting with approval from Daniels v Williams, 474 U.S. 327, 331 (1986) (emphasis in original). CLI, Haas and the shareholders are being deprived so!
152.
The U.S. Supreme Ct stated of Sacramento, 523 U.S. at 845 (quoting Hurtado v California, 110 U.S. 516, 527 (1884). 

 “after volumes spoken and written with a view to their exposition, the good sense of mankind has at last settled down to this; that [the principles of due process] were intended to secure the individual from arbitrary exercise of the powers of government, unrestrained by the established principles of private right and distributive justice.”  
153.
The Code commands disqualification of all parties who fail to disclose a conflict of interest. The 3rd Cir, the US Trustee and the Delaware Bankruptcy Court have dealt with Section 327(a) issues extensively. (Please see In re BH&P, Inc., 949 F.2d 1300 (3rd Cir. 1991) - In re Marvel Entertainment Group, Inc., 140 F.3d 463 (3rd Cir1998) – this Courts’ abundant references of Rome v Braunstein 19 F.3d 54, 58 (1st Cir 1994) (noting that conflicts can be “patently inappropriate”); failure here to address the conflicts has led to more material harm! 
154.
The case US Trustee v Price Waterhouse 19 F.3d (3rd Cir 1994) stipulates In re Price Waterhouse (93-3337) 19 F.3d 138 62 USLW 2638, 25 Bankr.Ct.Dec. 618, Bankr. L. Rep. P 75, 763 (3rd Cir 1994) “non-disclosure of conflicts of interest must result in disqualification as the statute is unambiguous”. In re First Jersey Securities 180 F 3d 504 (3rd Cir 1999)). 

155.
As anyone can see publicly of Madoff; the Government can be found inadequately asleep at the wheel resulting in encouraging the manifest injustice to prosper.

156.
Congress and the 3rd Circuit have laid the ground work here by noting the very scenario in question does occur. If you look at the case of In re Arkansas Co., 798 F.2d 645 (3rd Cir. 08/13/1986) – the Circuit has already remarked upon sophisticated attorney efforts to seize control of the bankruptcy process by a “bankruptcy ring” of perpetrators. As Arkansas noted;


“In fact, the House Report noted - "in practice . . . the bankruptcy system operates more for the benefit of attorneys than for the benefit of creditors." H.R. No. 595, 95th Cong., 2d Sess. 92, reprinted in 1978 U.S. Code Cong. & Ad. News 5963, 6053”


157.
As Congress noted and the 3rd Circuit did cite in the case of In re Arkansas, the failure to police the system properly results in detriment as reflected in Arkansas case;

It is significant that Congress chose to place the requirement of court approval for the employment of an attorney, accountant, or other professional by the creditors committee directly in the Bankruptcy Code in 1978. 11 U.S.C. § 1103(a). The legislative history makes clear that the 1978 Code was designed to eliminate the abuses and detrimental practices that had been found to prevail. Among such practices was the cronyism of the "bankruptcy ring" and attorney control of bankruptcy cases.  
158. 
The case of In re M.T.G., Inc., 366 B.R. 730 (E.D. Mich. 2007) (Matrix Technology Group) is a good study on fraud on the court issues. The M.T.G. case was akin to the eToys saga as, for many years, courts refused to acknowledge that fraud upon the court had occurred. Justice Tucker in the M.T.G. case said Court’s have a duty to address obvious fraud.


159.
Even this Court, dealing with a small portion of issues iterated in the Opinion of October 4, 2005 that “extra-ordinary circumstances” existed in the eToys case, necessitating Judicial application of review of “fraud on the court” items as the Opinion reflected verbatim;


“To hold otherwise would only serve to penalize the [Plaintiff] for delay that was beyond his control and to reward conflicted attorneys for failing to disclose their conflicts beyond the one-year period”.

160.
Other cases citing eToys do address Fraud on the Court as a Florida District Ct addressed cites of eToys issues of “non-disclosure” oand “conflicts of interest” to reopen the previously closed case of Baron’s (S FL 07-60770), due to Fraud upon the Court issues. The New York case of the US Trustee Paul Banner v Cohen Estis and Assoc, (In matter of Balco Equities NY S Dist Ct case 04-35777) cited eToys as a case precedent for total disqualification and the disgorgement of all fee’s for non-disclosure in violation of the Code. 
161
The US Trustee is the “watchdog
” specifically to police the courts to enforce disclosure and professional issues, especially for public equity entities per the Janet Reno Reform Act of 1994. In re Envirodyne, 150 B.R. at 1022 (“if the professional sought to be employed does not satisfy one prong of this standard, the Code prohibits the court from authorizing his or her employment”).  

162.
His Honor Judge Alito stated In the Matter of Price Waterhouse 19. F.3d 138, 140 (3 rd Cir. 1994) that the 3rd Circuit rejects the endeavor to misappropriate the Language that the Court may take a “flexible approach” in reference of In re BH&P, 949 F.2d at 1315 [**12] stating that “we must interpret and apply Section 327(a) – as His Honor reflected  “as we have explained, we find no ambiguity in the relevant language of Section 327(a)”.

163.
The  recent Asst Trustee handled the well known case of In re Cold Metal 02-43619 (E D Ohio Bankr 2002) addressing, extensively, the on-point issue of  § 327(a) akin to Stahl v Bartley Lindsay Co. (In re Bartley Co.,) 137 B.R. 305, 309 (D. Minn. 1991) stating “financial advisor or workout consultant is considered a professional subject to retention”. (Barry Gold was required to apply and TBF, MNAT, Xroads and Mr. Rosner are violate)!

164.
Barry Gold was the person supplied, purportedly in good faith, to become the President and CEO of eToys and is now known to have been a bad faith endeavor by TBF assisted by MNAT. The Barry Gold “planting” within eToys secretly by the clandestine Hiring Letter in 2001 wasn’t revealed to the Court until January 25, 2005 after Haas had documented their false affidavits and deceptions. It was also drafted after the fact, as it is dated June 2001 addressing issues that transpired in May 2001 to engage Mr. Gold into eToys.

165.
Compounding that violation TBF and MNAT deceived this Court again supplying a purported “arms length” Barry Gold for the Plan Administrator to distribute the remaining cash collateral and handle the closing of the case.  Supplying Mr. Gold to the Court, as “wind-down coordinator” changing the name to President/CEO and then, again planting Barry Gold as Plan Administrator - is Twice the effort of the crimes and continues the perpetrated harm to parties!
166.
Barry Gold is now documented incontrovertibly to have committed false testimony by both his Plan Administrator agreements and Declaration as well as the on the stand testimony in the pre plan confirmation hearing, being deposed by the eToys shareholder Robert Alber directly about his connections to TBF while TBF did deceive the court remaining silent!

167.
If you go to the US Trustee website you will see the Silver Screen report
 about cases of prosecutions of a person who did not declare a snow mobile, a bad check for $6,490.00, etc, etc. Extensive prosecution task forces to handle items less than ten thousand dollars.

168.
There are only twenty-one (21) US Trustee’s in the entire United States selecting only the vastly experienced person for such a venerated position. The US Trustee website http://www.usdoj.gov/ust/ contains profuse aptitude statements. One such statement is that “the United States Trustee program is the component of the Department of Justice responsible for overseeing the administration of bankruptcy cases”. On the top right hand side is the noteworthy statement that “Detecting and combating Bankruptcy Fraud is a U.S. Trustee program priority”.  


169.
 The very case provided to Haas and thus this Court comes to us by the US Trustee websites. In re Kraft v Aetna Casualty & Security Co., 43 B.R. 119 (Bankr. M.D. Tenn. 1984) (appraiser cannot bypass 327(a) by stating mere mechanical services.) (Barry Gold).

170.
Mmandated by 18 USC § 3057(a) to Notify & Refer all such matters to the US Attorney’s office.  There is no permitted discretion, for the integrity’s sake as is reflected verbatim;


3057(a)  - “Any judge, receiver, or trustee having reasonable grounds for believing that any violation under chapter 9 of this title or other laws of the United States relating to insolvent debtors, receiverships or reorganization plans has been committed, or that an investigation should be had in connection therewith, shall report to the appropriate United States attorney all the facts and circumstances of the case, the names of the witnesses and the offense or offenses believed to have been committed”. 

171.
Recertifying that issue and making it clear that such is not discretionary the United States Trustee has a statutory mandate under 28 USC § 586(a)(3)(F) to Notify & Refer
. 
TITLE 28 > PART II > CHAPTER 39 > § 586
§ 586. Duties; supervision by Attorney General
(a) Each United States trustee, within the region for which such United States trustee is appointed, shall—

“(a)(3)(F) notifying the appropriate United States attorney of matters which relate to the occurrence of any action which may constitute a crime under the laws of the United States and, on the request of the United States attorney, assisting the United States attorney in carrying out prosecutions based on such action;” 


172.
The Disgorge Motion states in ¶19 & ¶35 that the US Trustee had forewarned the parties not to replace key personnel of the Debtor, thereby making the planting of Barry Gold within the Debtor by the clandestine Hiring Letter extensively heinous. As verbatim in §19;


“They [TBF] are not strangers to the court or the retention process, nor are they strangers to the comprehensive and ongoing relationships analysis that any professional must perform when it seeks to be employed by a trustee or official committee in a bankruptcy case. More significantly, TBF was specifically aware in this matter, from discussions with the Office of the United States Trustee, of the UST’s concerns about replacing corporate officers with individuals related to any of the retained professionals in the case”.

173.
The Disgorge Motion also reflected that TBF admitted to the planting of Barry Gold within the Debtor as being done at the direct request of TBF as is confessed by TBF in the January 25, 2005 response entitled TBF’s Objection. (Please see TBF’s Objection, ¶10 and ¶11). Part 25 of the Disgorge Motion concluded that Barry Gold had a material adverse – divided loyalty as remarked in reference of Barry Gold’s fiduciary duty to the eToys stockholders;

“Additionally, TBF’s relationship with Gold may have impaired Gold’s ability to perform fiduciary duties to the debtors’ constituents other than the general unsecured creditors”.

174.
The Janet Reno Reform Act of 1994  issued a new directive for the Dept of Justice as it redesigned its emphasis on halting fraud and corruption in the bankruptcy system.  The Dept of Justice Policy in the US Trustee Manual USTM 5-1.1 states the position taken by the Department since 1992; which made "the aggressive prosecution of bankruptcy fraud a high priority of the Department of Justice." In the memorandum, Attorney General Reno stated
 "[i]t is imperative that the integrity of the bankruptcy system, an integral component of our national economy, be preserved and enhanced."


175.
 The issue at hand is not whether or not violations have occurred. The parties have confessed to deceiving the court and supplying false affidavits. The issue is continuous harm!

176.
The Supreme Court stated In re Hazel Atlas-Glass Co., v Hartford Empire Co., 322 U.S. 238, 239, 245 (1944) that due to fraud on the court a party can seek relief even nine years after the decision and open a previously closed case. Establishing the precedent that Fraud upon the Court by Officers of the Court is an offense so heinous that the Statute of Limitations cannot be utilized as an evasive tool by those that would seek to pervert justice.

XXVIII
 CONCLUSION and PRAYER FOR RELIEF


177.
The email threat for Haas to “back off” from seeking the facts or not only would Haas and CLI not be paid Haas would suffer additional retaliations efforts is Intimidating a Victim or Witness obstructive crime. Barry Gold as “wind-down coordinator” then President/CEO and Plan Administrator basically stole CLI’s position as Liquidation Consultant! 
178. 
Being that both of Paul Traub’s partners, (Petters and Dreier) are arrested for over $2.3 billion in Fraud issues; while at the same time both of those partners have issues connected to this case (Petters/Fingerhut – Dreier’s firm name is upon eToys cases in DE and NY) is grounds for investigation to become prosecution when you coalesce the TBF false affidavits.

179.
Paul Traub of Dreier/TBF, MNAT and Xroads all have continuous issues of “non-disclosure” of “conflicts of interest” in violation of the Code concerning Wells Fargo, Foothill Capital, Fleet Bank, Liquidity Solutions and Bain/KB. The rescindable amounts of those items could reach into the hundreds of millions of dollars to be returned to the Debtor’s estate where the Debtor can be made whole again. This commands a whole new mindset of the Courts.

180.
Within the NY Supreme Court case of Goldman Sachs there is the ongoing issues of hundreds of millions of dollars that remains in the hands of parties that are documented to be unethical and to act contrary to the best interest of their clients for their own veiled agendas.


181.
The firm of TBF, now Dreier/TBF acquired the ability to handle the NY Supreme Court case 601805/2002 by a materially false Supplemental Affidavit and is to be disqualified.


182
There has been no proper accounting to date, as is required by the Section 3.17 Reporting Requirements that specifically states the Plan Administrator (Barry Gold) is to detail in a report. Repeated requests by Rule 2004, to examine Books n Records have been ignored.


183.
The Sale of eToys.com is now under the cloud of Collusion to Defraud the Estate and the domain of eToys.com and compensation for its worth is to be returned to the Debtor’s estate being that the original sale is now documented to have failed the “bona fide” test.

184.
Barry Gold is to be removed for “cause” as Plan Administrator under Section 5. 2 and should be replaced by either Haas, or someone clearly independent of the Toy industry who has benefited from this malum in se – refusing to address the issue out of concern for Bain/KB.

185.
MNAT persistently has failed to disclose the Mattel, Bain and Learning Center issues candidly and is to be disqualified and disgorged under Section 327(a).

186.
It is absolutely absurd that the Courts and Dept of Justice have adopted the premise supplicated by those that have confessed to deceiving the court by multiple and intentionally false affidavits, that Haas simply waived CLI’s $3.7 million in fees/ expenses.
187.
New evidence by the Court approved documents, that Haas has standing and that the refusal to Indemnify and hold Haas CLI harmless by the Debtor is a continuous breach of contract of a document drafted by TBF, MNAT and Barry Gold. The Court approved Contracts grant Haas and/or any of CLI’s functionaries that were approved the right to “standing” as a “person aggrieved. The parties withheld this information from Haas and the Court fraudulently!
188.
PLEASE TAK NOTE  -- TBF/Dreier is represented here by Cooley Godward and Kronish, with the TBF local counsel of Duane Morris/Rosner, whilst Saul Ewing/Minuti represents Barry Gold and MNAT has become their de facto partner in schemes to defraud the Debtor and this Court. Demonstrating no sufficient deterrent has occurred, in the case of RDVA Inc/ Domain Inc (DE Bankruptcy 08-10132) – Saul Ewing is co-counsel for Debtor with Dreier LLP (Traub) and Duane Morris/ Rosner is co-Creditors Counsel with Cooley Godwarnd & Kronish (Traub’s attorney). As in eToys, that case also involves Wells Fargo and items of engagement being placed Under Seal and MNAT is applying to be Special Conflicts counsel!
189.
Wherefore Haas prays the Court to stop the insanity of Fraud on the Court “sua sponte”. And if necessary to hold a hearing on the matters at the earliest convenience to end profuse Fraud upon the Court! The Delaware Dept of Justice has a conflict of interest that has not been disclosed. Combined with the testimony by the Dept of Justice that it has not and will not address the issues of MNAT gives great cause for concern necessitating an Official 18 U.S.C. § 3057(a) Notify & Refer to an ‘independent Federal authority. The parties are too totally come clean and resign. Removing Barry Gold and placing Haas in as Plan Administrator would solve many problems and can be done for a reduced cost. If not a clearly independent Administrator needs to be appointed not beholden to the Toys Industry as all who participated and refused to address the issues are Equitable subordination issues under Section 510(c).

The Quest here is the pursuit of Justice – no more –but most certainly – no Less!



Signed Under Penalty of Perjury this the _29 day of _December 2008






 /s/ Steven Haas (a/k/a Laser Haas) “Pro se”







____________________________________
� It was learned, subsequent to this Court’s ruling and finding of fact, conclusion of Law Opinion of October 4, 2005 that the DE Dept of Justice has a conflict of interest issue concerning the Morris Nichols Arsht & Tunnel Law firm necessitating a need to refer this to the Public Integrity Section � HYPERLINK "http://www.usdoj.gov/olp/colmconnollyresume.htm" �http://www.usdoj.gov/olp/colmconnollyresume.htm�  


� Throughout this briefing, (“D.I.”) shall denote the docket item in the DE Bankruptcy eToys case 01-706 and if any other case is to be mentioned it will be specifically noted; as such as this example - (KB Toys DE Bankr 04-10120)


� The Confirmed Plan contains clause 4.3(d)(i)  “If the proposed amount --- less than or equal to $1,000,000 --- the Plan Administrator shall be authorized and empowered to settle --- upon the Plan Administrator’s receipt of the PEDC’s consent or the Bankruptcy Court approval”


� � HYPERLINK "http://www.google.com/search?hl=en&q=eat+what+you+kill+gellene&aq=f&oq" �http://www.google.com/search?hl=en&q=eat+what+you+kill+gellene&aq=f&oq�= 


� � HYPERLINK "http://www.usdoj.gov/ust/eo/ust_org/ustp_manual/index.htm" �http://www.usdoj.gov/ust/eo/ust_org/ustp_manual/index.htm� 


� CORPORATE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT  PURSUANT [US Trustee] TO FED. R. APP. P. 26.1 [the]United States Trustees are officials of the Department of Justice appointed by  the Attorney General to supervise the administration of bankruptcy cases and trustees .  See 11 U.S.C. §§ 581-589; United States Trustee v. Revco,D.S.,Inc. (In re Revco  D.S.,Inc), 898F.2d498, 499 (6`hCir. 1990)("[t]heUnited States trustee, an officer  of the Executive branch, represents . .[the] public interest.") (in eToys – the DE Dept of Justice has violated its duty).


� � HYPERLINK "http://www.usdoj.gov/ust/eo/public_affairs/press/docs/silver_screen_final_10-28-04.htm" ��http://www.usdoj.gov/ust/eo/public_affairs/press/docs/silver_screen_final_10-28-04.htm�


� � HYPERLINK "http://www4.law.cornell.edu/uscode/28/586.html" ��http://www4.law.cornell.edu/uscode/28/586.html�
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